

JOURNAL OF THE SENATE

Fiftieth Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

ELEVENTH DAY

Bismarck, January 20, 1987

The Senate convened at 1:00 p.m., with President Meiers presiding.

The prayer was offered by Reverend Mark Bayert, First Presbyterian Church, Bismarck.

Let us pray. Wise and Just Governor of the Universe, we are grateful that we live in a time and place in which we have a voice in determining our own affairs. Today in the midst of heated debate on complicated issues, may these Senators not forget that they are representatives of the people and may they place the welfare of the people - all the people - above party loyalty, vested interests, of personal advancement, and pray that their decisions will fit into Your larger plan and purpose for creation so that future generations will find this state a good place to live, learn, work, and enjoy. Amen.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called and all Senators were present, except Senators Axtman, Richard, Satrom, and Waldera.

A quorum was declared by the President.

CORRECTION AND REVISION OF THE JOURNAL

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Correction and Revision of the Journal has carefully examined the Journal of the Tenth Day and recommends that the same be corrected as follows and, when so corrected, recommends that the same be approved:

On page 262, line 5, delete the words "0 NAYS" and insert in lieu thereof the words "1 NAY"

On page 280, line 5, delete the words "Rep. Cleveland" and insert in lieu thereof the words "Reps. Cleveland and Laughlin"

SEN. J. MEYER, Chairman

SEN. NALEWAJA MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

**MESSAGE FROM THE HOUSE
HOUSE CHAMBER**

MADAM PRESIDENT: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on:

HB 1093, HB 1116, HB 1175, HB 1205, HCR 3003

ROY GILBREATH, Chief Clerk

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE
SENATE CHAMBER**

MR. SPEAKER: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the Senate has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on:

SB 2045, SB 2060, SB 2073, SB 2094, SB 2109, SB 2113,
SB 2171, SB 2173, SB 2177, SB 2182, SB 2221

PERRY GROTEBERG, Secretary

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS

SEN. TENNEFOS MOVED that the amendments to SB 2199 as recommended by the **Committee on Transportation** as printed on page 259 of the Senate Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends the same DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

SB 2199 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

SEN. KRAUTER MOVED that the amendments to SB 2219 as recommended by the **Committee on Industry, Business and Labor** as printed on page 259 of the Senate Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends the same DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

SB 2219 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

SEN. TODD MOVED that the amendments to SB 2262 as recommended by the **Committee on Natural Resources** as printed on pages 259-260 of the Senate Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends the same DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

SB 2262 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

SEN. DOTZENROD MOVED that the amendments to SB 2282 as recommended by the **Committee on Political Subdivisions** as printed on pages 260-261 of the Senate Journal be adopted, and when so adopted, recommends the same DO PASS, which motion prevailed.

SB 2282 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred SB 2151 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 4, delete line 11 and insert in lieu thereof the following three lines:

"that I am a qualified elector; that I reside at -----;
(address)
that each signature"

And renumber the lines and pages accordingly

SEN. LASHKOWITZ, Chairman

SB 2151 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred SB 2271 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 17, delete the word "addendums" and insert in lieu thereof the word "addenda"

On page 1, line 20, after the period insert the words "The commissioner of insurance may exempt any domestic company or category or class of domestic companies from the filing requirement."

And renumber the lines and pages accordingly

SEN. LANGLEY, Chairman

SB 2271 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MOTION

SEN. HEIGAARD MOVED that 100 copies of SCR 4003 and SCR 4009 be reprinted, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2048: A BILL for an Act to provide for the reciprocal recognition of certain state and tribal court judgments, decrees, and orders; and to provide an expiration date.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 53 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Bakewell; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Holmberg; Ingstad; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krauter; Langley; Lashkowitz; Lips; Lodoen; Maixner; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten; Richard; Satrom; Schoenwald; Shea; Stenehjem; Streibel; Stromme; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Tweten; Vosper; Waldera; Wogsland; Wright; Yockim

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None

SB 2048 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2096: A BILL for an Act establishing English as the official language of the state of North Dakota.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 38 YEAS, 15 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Bakewell; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Hilken; Keller; Kelly; Langley; Lashkowitz; Lips; Lodoen; Maixner; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten; Richard; Shea; Streibel; Stromme; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Tweten; Vosper; Wright; Yockim

NAYS: Heinrich; Holmberg; Ingstad; Kelsh; Krauter; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.; Mushik; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjem; Waldera; Wogsland

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None

SB 2096 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2110: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 4-09-01 and a new subsection to section 4-09-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to definitions of labeler and disease test; to amend and reenact

subsections 6, 17, and 18 of section 4-09-01, subsection 1 of section 4-09-03, sections 4-09-05, 4-09-08, 4-09-14.1, 4-09-14.2, 4-09-14.3, 4-09-14.4, subsections 2, 3, and 5 of section 4-09-15, sections 4-09-22, 4-09-23, and 4-09-24 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to rulemaking authority, free seed tests, seed labeling fee permits, reports, offenses, and enforcement; and to provide a penalty.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

MOTIONS

SEN. KELSH MOVED that Engrossed SB 2110 be further amended as follows:

On page 3 of the engrossed bill, line 21, remove the overstrike over the words "~~Free tests--~~" and the word "~~additional~~"

On page 3 of the engrossed bill, line 24, after the word "~~test~~" insert the words "germination tests" and remove the overstrike over the words "~~but not to exceed three samples per year per~~"

On page 3 of the engrossed bill, line 25, remove the overstrike over the words "~~person shall be examined and reported on free of charge~~" and delete the word "germination"

On page 3 of the engrossed bill, line 26, delete the word "test"

On page 3 of the engrossed bill, line 28, remove the overstrike over the word "~~free~~"

On page 3 of the engrossed bill, line 29, remove the overstrike over the words "~~in excess of three~~"

And renumber the lines and pages accordingly

SEN. KELSH MOVED that the proposed amendments be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REQUEST

SEN. OLSON REQUESTED a recorded roll call vote on the motion to adopt the proposed amendments to Engrossed SB 2110, which request was granted.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the motion to adopt the proposed amendments to Engrossed SB 2110, the roll was called and there were 23 YEAS, 28 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Axtman; Dotzenrod; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Keller; Kelsh; Krauter; Langley; Lashkowitz; Maixner; Mathern; Meyer, J.; Mushik; Nalewaja; Redlin; Richard;

Satrom; Schoenwald; Stromme; Tallackson; Waldera; Wogsland

NAYS: Adams; Bakewell; David; Freborg; Holmberg; Ingstad; Kelly; Lodoen; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mutch; Naaden; Nelson; Nething; Olson; Peterson; Reiten; Stenehjsem; Streibel; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Tweten; Vosper; Wright; Yockim

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lips; Shea

The proposed amendments to Engrossed SB 2110 lost.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 51 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Bakewell; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Holmberg; Ingstad; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krauter; Langley; Lashkowitz; Lodoen; Maixner; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten; Richard; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjsem; Streibel; Stromme; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Tweten; Vosper; Waldera; Wogsland; Wright; Yockim

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lips; Shea

Engrossed SB 2110 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2069: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 48-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the powers and duties of the capitol grounds planning commission and its authority to accept gifts; to amend and reenact section 48-10-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the capitol grounds planning commission; and to declare an emergency.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 51 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Bakewell; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Holmberg; Ingstad; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krauter; Langley; Lashkowitz; Lodoen;

Maixner; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten; Richard; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjsem; Streibel; Stromme; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Tweten; Vosper; Waldera; Wogsland; Wright; Yockim

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lips; Shea

SB 2069 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause carried.

MOTION

SEN. J. MEYER MOVED that SB 2117, which is on the Eleventh order, be rereferred to the Committee on Human Services and Veterans Affairs, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2070: A BILL for an Act to provide for a system for recording state property having historical or artistic significance and for reviewing the artistic value of such property; to create and enact a new subsection to section 54-54-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the duties of the state council on the arts; to amend and reenact sections 1-08-04, 48-11-03, and 55-01-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the authority of certain state entities to accept gifts; and to declare an emergency.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 51 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Bakewell; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Holmberg; Ingstad; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krauter; Langley; Lashkowitz; Lodoen; Maixner; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten; Richard; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjsem; Streibel; Stromme; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Tweten; Vosper; Waldera; Wogsland; Wright; Yockim

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lips; Shea

SB 2070 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause carried.

SB 2075: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 38-11.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to inspection of well sites; and to amend and reenact section 38-11.1-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to information that must accompany the notice of oil and gas drilling operations.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 51 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Bakewell; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Holmberg; Ingstad; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krauter; Langley; Lashkowitz; Lodoen; Maixner; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten; Richard; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjem; Streibel; Stromme; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Tweten; Vosper; Waldera; Wogsland; Wright; Yockim

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lips; Shea

SB 2075 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2142: A BILL for an Act to create and enact six new subsections to section 39-01-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to motor vehicle definitions; and to repeal sections 39-04-01 and 39-22-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to motor vehicle definitions.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 51 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Bakewell; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Holmberg; Ingstad; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krauter; Langley; Lashkowitz; Lodoen; Maixner; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.;

Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja;
 Nelson; Nething; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten;
 Richard; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjøm; Streibel;
 Stromme; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Tweten;
 Vosper; Waldera; Wogsland; Wright; Yockim

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lips; Shea

SB 2142 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2200: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 39-05-20 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to obtaining certificate of title to a vehicle upon inability to obtain old certificate.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 51 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Bakewell; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Holmberg; Ingstad; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krauter; Langley; Lashkowitz; Lodoen; Maixner; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten; Richard; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjøm; Streibel; Stromme; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Tweten; Vosper; Waldera; Wogsland; Wright; Yockim

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lips; Shea

SB 2200 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTIONS

SEN. TENNEFOS MOVED that SB 2126 be amended as follows:

On page 1, line 2, delete the word "governor's" and after the word "approval" insert the words "of the governor and the budget section of the legislative council"

On page 1, line 9, after the word "governor" insert the words "and the budget section of the legislative council"

And renumber the lines and pages accordingly

SEN. TENNEFOS MOVED that the proposed amendments be adopted, which motion prevailed.

SEN. TENNEFOS MOVED that the rules be suspended and that SB 2126 be placed on the calendar, as amended, for second reading and final passage, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

SB 2126: A BILL for an Act authorizing the director of institutions, with the approval of the governor and the budget section of the legislative council, to sell, lease, exchange, or transfer title or use to all or part of the properties of San Haven; and to provide an expiration date.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, as amended, the roll was called and there were 46 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Bakewell; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Holmberg; Ingstad; Keller; Kelsh; Krauter; Langley; Lodoen; Maixner; Mathern; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nething; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten; Richard; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjem; Streibel; Stromme; Tallackson; Thane; Todd; Tweten; Vosper; Waldera; Wogsland; Yockim

NAYS: Kelly; Lashkowitz; Maxson; Tennefos; Wright

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lips; Shea

SB 2126 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTIONS

SEN. HEIGAARD MOVED that the Senate stand in recess for ten minutes, which motion prevailed.

THE SENATE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with the President presiding.

SEN. MOORE MOVED that SB 2072, which is on the Eleventh order, be referred to the Committee on National Resources, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2087: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 39-10.2-02 and 39-10.2-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to motorcycle operation and equipment.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 47 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Holmberg; Ingstad; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krauter; Lashkowitz; Lodoen; Maixner; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nothing; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten; Richard; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjem; Streibel; Stromme; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Vosper; Waldera; Wogsland; Wright; Yockim

NAYS: Bakewell; David; Langley

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lips; Shea; Tweten

SB 2087 passed and the title was agreed to.

SB 2114: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 37-15-10.1 and subsection 1 of section 37-18.1-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the priorities for admission to the veterans' home and the makeup of the subcommittees of the administrative committee on veterans' affairs.

Which has been read and has committee recommendation of DO PASS.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 50 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Adams; Axtman; Bakewell; David; Dotzenrod; Freborg; Heigaard; Heinrich; Hilken; Holmberg; Ingstad; Keller; Kelly; Kelsh; Krauter; Langley; Lashkowitz; Lodoen; Maixner; Mathern; Maxson; Meyer, D.; Meyer, J.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Mutch; Naaden; Nalewaja; Nelson; Nothing; Olson; Peterson; Redlin; Reiten; Richard; Satrom; Schoenwald; Stenehjem; Streibel; Stromme; Tallackson; Tennefos; Thane; Todd; Vosper; Waldera; Wogsland; Wright; Yockim

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Lips; Shea; Tweten

SB 2114 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTIONS

SEN. HEIGAARD MOVED that the absent Senators be excused, which motion prevailed.

SEN. HEIGAARD MOVED that the Senate be on the Fifth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Fifth order of business, be on the Ninth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Ninth order of business, be on the Eleventh order of business, and at the conclusion of the Eleventh order of business, and after the reading of SB 2051, SB 2132, SB 2199, SB 2219, SB 2222, SB 2223, SB 2224, SB 2226, SB 2232, SB 2249, SB 2251, SB 2253, SB 2262, SB 2276, and SB 2282 that the Senate stand adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Wednesday, January 21, 1987, which motion prevailed.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred SB 2051 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 7 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

SEN. D. MEYER, Chairman

SB 2051 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred SB 2132 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

SEN. LANGLEY, Chairman

SB 2132 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred SB 2222 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

SEN. LANGLEY, Chairman

SB 2222 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred SB 2223 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

SEN. LANGLEY, Chairman

SB 2223 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred SB 2224 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

SEN. LANGLEY, Chairman

SB 2224 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Industry, Business and Labor to which was referred SB 2226 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

SEN. LANGLEY, Chairman

SB 2226 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred SB 2232 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

SEN. LASHKOWITZ, Chairman

SB 2232 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred SB 2249 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

SEN. D. MEYER, Chairman

SB 2249 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred SB 2251 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

SEN. D. MEYER, Chairman

SB 2251 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred SB 2253 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

SEN. D. MEYER, Chairman

SB 2253 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM PRESIDENT: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was referred SB 2276 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 8 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

SEN. D. MEYER, Chairman

SB 2276 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1057: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-07 and a new subsection to section 54-09-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the duties of the governor and the secretary of state to file and record the filing of bills passed by the legislative assembly; to amend and reenact section 46-03-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the publication of the laws; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

HB 1062: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 57-38-57 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to secrecy as to income tax returns and prohibiting disclosure as to whether or not a taxpayer has filed an income tax return or report; and to provide an effective date.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation.

HB 1081: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 54-44.2 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a data processing advisory committee.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

HB 1146: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 54-52-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to prohibition of assignment or other pledge of certain retirement benefits and funds.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

HB 1161: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 15-40.2-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the composition of the three-member tuition committee.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Education.

HB 1261: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subdivision c of subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.2 and subdivision c of subsection 1 of section 57-38-01.3 of the North Dakota

TUESDAY, JANUARY 20, 1987

301

Century Code, relating to income tax deductions for federal income taxes paid; and to provide an effective date. Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation.

The Senate stood adjourned pursuant to Senator Heigaard's motion.

PERRY GROTBORG, Secretary